
Audit and Governance Committee
Date: Monday, 10 August 2020
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: Please note that, due to the 
current coronavirus pandemic the 
Council has reviewed its approach to 
holding committee meetings.  

This meeting will be held remotely in a Microsoft
Teams Live Event (see link below)

Membership: (Quorum 3)
Matthew Hall (Chairman), Richard Biggs (Vice-Chairman), Simon Christopher, 
Susan Cocking, David Gray, Brian Heatley, Nocturin Lacey-Clarke, Mike Parkes, Bill Pipe 
and Bill Trite

Chief Executive: Matt Prosser, South Walks House, South Walks Road, 
Dorchester, Dorset DT1 1UZ (Sat Nav DT1 1EE)

For more information about this agenda please contact Democratic Services on 
Fiona King or 01305 224186 - fiona.king@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

For easy access to the Council agendas and minutes download the free 
public app Mod.gov for use on your iPad, Android and Windows tablet. Once 
downloaded select Dorset Council.

 
Due to the current coronavirus pandemic the Council has reviewed its approach to holding
committee meetings. Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting and listen
to the debate online by using the following link:-

Audit & Governance Committee

Members of the public wishing to view the meeting from an iphone, ipad or android
phone will need to download the free Microsoft Team App to sign in as a Guest, it is
advised to do this at least 30 minutes prior to the start of the meeting.

Please note that public speaking has been suspended. However Public Participation will
continue by written submission only. Please see detail set out below.

Dorset Council is committed to being open and transparent in the way it carries out its
business whenever possible. A recording of the meeting will be available on the council’s
website after the event.

Public Document Pack

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NzllNzNiOGEtM2JhOC00OTNiLWJhNDItOGU4MzQ1ZDkwYzg4%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%220a4edf35-f0d2-4e23-98f6-b0900b4ea1e6%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22a6712cc6-06d6-4f8a-9f85-df159c7b78c1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d


Using social media at virtual meetings
Anyone can use social media such as tweeting and blogging to report the meeting when it 
is open to the public.



A G E N D A

Page No.

1  APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence.

2  MINUTES 5 - 12

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 7 July 2020.

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest.

4  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

To receive questions or statements on the business of the committee 
from town and parish councils and members of the public.

Please note that public speaking has been suspended during the 
Covid-19 crisis. Each question or statement is limited to no more than 
450 words and must be electronically submitted to 
fiona.king@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk by the deadline set out below.

The question or statement will be read out by an officer of the Council 
and a response will be given by the appropriate Portfolio Holder at the 
meeting. All questions/statements and the responses will be published 
in full within the minutes of the meeting.

The deadline for submission of the full text of a question or 
statement is 8.30am on Thursday 6 August 2020.

5  DORSET COUNCIL EU EXIT PREPARATIONS

To receive an update from the Executive Director of Place with regard 
to preparations being made by Dorset Council in respect of the EU 
Exit.

6  VALUE FOR MONEY - POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 13 - 16

To consider a report from the Executive Director for Corporate 
Development.



7  FORWARD PLAN 17 - 24

To consider the work programme for the Committee.

8  URGENT ITEMS

To consider any items of business which the Chairman has had prior 
notification and considers to be urgent pursuant to section 100B (4) b) 
of the Local Government Act 1972. The reason for the urgency shall 
be recorded in the minutes.



DORSET COUNCIL - AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON TUESDAY 7 JULY 2020

Present: Cllrs Matthew Hall (Chairman), Richard Biggs (Vice-Chairman), 
Simon Christopher, Susan Cocking, David Gray, Brian Heatley, Nocturin Lacey-
Clarke, Mike Parkes, Bill Pipe and Bill Trite

Also present: Cllr Spencer Flower, Cllr Peter Wharf and Clare Skivens

Officers present (for all or part of the meeting):
Rupert Bamberger (Assistant Director SWAP), Bridget Downton (Head of 
Business Insight and Corporate Communications), Aidan Dunn (Executive 
Director - Corporate Development S151), Marc Eyre (Service Manager for 
Assurance), Jonathan Mair (Corporate Director - Legal & Democratic Service 
Monitoring Officer), Jim McManus (Corporate Director - Finance and Commercial), 
David Trotter (Risk and Resilience Officer), Kate Critchel (Senior Democratic 
Services Officer) and Fiona King (Democratic Services Officer)

74.  Apologies

No apologies for absence were received at the meeting.

75.  Minutes

The minutes of the meeting held on 20 May 2020 were confirmed and signed.

76.  Declarations of Interest

No declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests were made at the meeting.

77.  Public Participation

There were no representations from parish or town councils or from members 
of the public.

78.  Dorset Council's Performance Framework

Members considered a report from the Chief Executive which included the draft 
performance framework for the Council.

The Head of Business Insight and Corporate Communications apologised for the 
lateness of the report due to additional work pressures in relation to the pandemic. 

Cllr Gray was disappointed that value for money (vfm) was not implicit anywhere in 
the document and queried if there would be a balanced scorecard. He would have 
expected a red, green and amber type scorecard.  He also noted that climate change 
was not listed and he would expect to see this as a key KPI.  The Head of Business 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



2

Insight responded that the approach of using a balanced scorecard would be used 
and it would be for the Audit and Governance Committee to oversee the approach 
rather than monitor performance.  The Overview Committees would be reviewing 
performance, which was different from the approach of the predecessor County 
Council.  One of the four elements of the balanced scorecard was around finance 
which she felt could be strengthened and she emphasised that the financial quadrant 
was about vfm as well as budget performance.  The Head of Business Insight added 
that continuous tracking was part of the framework and there would be an action 
tracker in place with the person who was responsible for the action.  In respect of 
climate change officers were currently looking at the detailed KPIs and would be 
working with colleagues to determine the appropriate ones.

The Executive Director for Corporate Development reassured Cllr Gray that his 
comments on vfm had been heard and that a report on how the Council saw vfm, the 
budget process and benchmarking would be presented to members at their August 
meeting.

The Chairman highlighted the importance of tracking the actions and of keeping an 
eye on poor performing areas.

The Cabinet Member for Corporate Development and Change advised that officers 
had constructed a robust performance plan.  With regards to climate change, the 
Plan had yet to be agreed by Cabinet which when agreed would lead to the 
construction of the relevant KPIs. He added that he was always happy to attend and 
speak to members about performance management and highlighted the importance 
of keeping things relevant.

In response to a question about what the performance measure would be and that 
there was a lack of mention of geographical deprivation, the Head of Business Insight 
advised she felt it was helpful get a draft out to shape performance but accepted 
more details needed to be worked up. How deprivation was represented needed 
some more thought and she undertook to discuss this with the relevant Portfolio 
Holder.

Decision
1.That the draft performance framework in Appendix 1, be amended with further 
detail as discussed and be brought back to members for agreement. 
2. That the performance framework be reviewed to incorporate risk reporting in due 
course.

Reasons for Decisions
To ensure the council’s progress is measured and monitored and that appropriate 
links between risk and performance management are in place.

79.  Annual Governance Statement

Members considered a report from the Corporate Director Legal and Democratic 
which included the revised draft Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for 2019-20, 
which had been amended to reflect improvements suggested by members at the 
previous meeting held on 20 May 2020.

The Service Manager for Assurance highlighted the changes that had been made 
since the last draft and noted that the Risk Register was included as an appendix. He 
added that the Risk Management report would be built on and updated in readiness 
for the September meeting.

Page 6



3

Following a question from the Chairman regarding whether members had sight of the 
ethical questionnaires and what they entailed the Service Manager undertook to find 
out and report back to him.

One member suggested the addition of the word ‘striving’ to the headline regarding 
good governance and regarding a statement on page 31 he felt the addition of 
‘serving’ rather than ‘leading’ was more appropriate. 

Members acknowledged and appreciated the amount of work taken to include 
members comments.   It was agreed that early sight of the document ad been a good 
example of how members could help influence the final documents.

Decision
That the revised draft of the Annual Governance Statement for 2019-20 be approved 
and would now be passed to the Leader and Chief Executive for signing.

Reason for Decision
Approval and publication of an Annual Governance Statement by the Council is a 
statutory requirement and provides evidence that Dorset Council maintains high 
standards of governance and addresses significant shortcomings and risks.

80.  Internal Audit 2019/20 Progress

The Committee received the South West Audit Partnership (SWAP) Report of 
Internal Audit Activity – Plan Progress report for 2019/20. This update report covered 
the quarter 3 information that was due to be discussed at the March meeting and had 
been updated to cover the period up to the end of the financial year.  SWAP’S 
ongoing audit opinion within this report was limited to 31 March 2020 and whilst 
SWAP would normally provide a quarter 1 update at this time, due to the 
unprecedented circumstances day to day activity around audit assurance work was 
only just being resumed.  Members noted that SWAP’s opinion for 2019-20 would be 
based on almost a whole year’s work and would be provided to the committee in the 
annual report in September, however the annual opinion for 2020-21 would not be 
based on a whole year’s assurance work.

The Chairman thanked SWAP and the rest of the team for all their support during the 
pandemic, stepping away from their usual audit work to assist the Council in 
responding to the pandemic.

The Vice-Chairman highlighted the area of Pupil Premium Plus.  He noted that a lot 
had happened since April.  Whilst he felt reassured that steps had been taken to 
address the particular concern that had been identified it was not clear to him if 
controls had been put in place to stop it happening again and this should be a 
serious concern to all. The Assistant Director, SWAP assured members that this 
would continue to be followed up and that the recommendations were being taken 
forward.  He undertook to bring an update for members to the September meeting.

In respect of Whistleblowing, the Service Manager for Assurance advised that an 
action plan was now in place to move forward the recommendations.  The key 
outstanding areas related to communications of the fraud related policies and this 
was in the process of being addressed.  It was proposed that an Annual Report of 
Fraud and Whistleblowing should be presented to the September meeting, and that 
this would incorporate an update on outstanding actions.  

Following a question from a member about the Purbeck bank reconciliations the 
Corporate Director for Finance and Commercial explained to members the issues 

Page 7



4

arose due to LGR and staff handover issues but that the bank reconciliation process 
was now up to date.  The external auditors were now undertaking their annual audit 
and there was a plan to switch off the old legacy systems shortly.

The representative from Deloitte advised members that as part of their work they 
would look at suspense accounts and the process of reconciliations and year end 
work.

In a response to a request for assurance around the bank reconciliations for the 
former district council, the Executive Director for Corporate Development advised 
that Purbeck District council had ceased to exist and that the accounts were closed 
last year and the external audit identified no issues. The Assistant Director, SWAP 
added that he was happy to work alongside Deloitte and/or the Corporate Director for 
Finance and Commercial to provide an internal audit follow up on this to provide the 
necessary assurance that these areas had been addressed.

In respect of the deferred audit of Achievements of Savings Plans, the Executive 
Director Corporate Development advised that due to the pandemic implementation of 
previous transformation plans had been postponed.  However, in the light of the 
pandemic there was a real need to review the financial situation, identifying new 
savings targets and plans, the scale of which was not yet known.  The Executive 
Director indicated that an audit review of the implementation of these savings plans 
would be welcome in the 2020-21 financial year.

One member asked what the effect of the pandemic had been on internal controls 
and the segregation of duties.  The Executive Director advised that the current 
arrangements was that around 2,500 members of staff were working at home across 
the whole organisation but confirmed that finance staff were able to continue to 
undertake their duties including the payment of business grants effectively. Officers 
were confident about IT security, the controls in place to detect cyber attacks were 
very vigilant around this.

A member raised a concern the Blueprint for Change was cited as the resolution to 
issues around social care, the Assistant Director, SWAP advised that any audit 
review that received a partial assurance opinion would be followed up as a matter of 
course to ensure that the recommendations made had been effectively implemented.  
The Monitoring Officer added that if members had concerns regarding the Blueprint 
for Change programme these could be raised with the People Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.

An update from Deloitte, the external auditors, was given to members.  The Audit and 
Financial Statement was well under way as was the testing in all areas.  They were 
starting to see some areas with legacy systems and had regular calls with officers of 
the Council. The valuation work had been a huge piece of work.

Following a question regarding contracts for hotels in the Weymouth area that were 
used to house homeless people and whether Deloitte would be looking at the internal 
control system used, the representative advised that they would not look at them 
specifically and that a sample test might not select them but undertook to liaise with 
the Corporate Director Finance and Commercial and look at it along with the value 
for money work.

 Decision
1. That an update on Pupil Premium Plus be included for members at their meeting in 
September and that the relevant officers be invited to attend.

Page 8



5

2. That an item regarding whistlebowing and anti-fraud corruption be added to the 
Forward Plan for September.

81.  Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 and Planning Approach

Members considered a report from the South West Audit Partnership (SWAP) which 
had been due to be presented on 24 March 2020.  However, due to to the COVID-19 
outbreak and subsequent lockdown, that Committee had been postponed.   It was 
noted that a lot had changed since this time and therefore an updated approach to 
internal audit work and planning had to be implemented.  The report set out an 
updated approach to Internal Audit Planning in 2020/21.

In relation to changes to audits in the Plan, the Chairman highlighted the importance 
of SWAP keeping members informed regularly to avoid having to potentially react to 
something that was possibly a few months old. The Assistant Director, SWAP 
advised that SWAP were currently looking to introduce a system for members to be 
able to see a live view of the audit plan along with audits added and removed.  This 
system when implemented would address the Chairman’s concerns.

Noted

82.  Assessing and Developing the Capacity of the Audit and Governance 
Committee

The Monitoring Officer referred to discussions with the Chairman, Vice-Chairman, 
Executive Director for Corporate Development and the Corporate Director for 
Finance and Commercial about the role and capacity of the Audit and Governance 
Committee.   

The discussion had arisen from external training attended by the Chairman and Vice 
Chairman where reference had been made to Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
Guidance on the role of audit committees.  

This item for discussion had been originally on the agenda for the March meeting but 
at that point the government had not made regulations enabling virtual meetings to 
take place.  The main question for the committee was whether to conduct a skills 
audit with a view to identifying any gaps which might be filled by co-optees.  
However, as the Annual meeting of the Council had been postponed until September 
it could now be premature to do a skills audit when membership may change in 
September.

The Chairman advised that the training had been very informative but the Committee 
was only as good as its knowledge and therefore it was important to ensure the 
Committee was made up of the right people with the right training in place in order to 
have  fully functioning and knowledgeable committee.

Following a discussion about training the Executive Director for Corporate 
Development advised that a training day was always useful to provide the collective 
governance of the Council.  SWAP tended to offer regular training around October.

The Vice-Chairman made reference to the issue of having an independent member 
on the Committee but felt this was probably not appropriate for Dorset. He felt it 
would be good to get members involved who wanted to be and with the appropriate 
background experience.

Page 9



6

The Chairman asked members to think about what further training they would like to 
see arranged and whether they wished to remain on the Committee and to email him 
accordingly.

83.  Progress with Policy Convergence

With the agreement of the Chairman, the Corporate Director, Legal and Democratic 
covered the items Policy Harmonisation and Policy Convergence together.

The Corporate Director pointed out that during this meeting there had been various 
references to policies and approaches of predecessor councils.  This item concerned 
bringing policy convergence to support the work of one Dorset Council.

Prior to 1 April 2019 when Dorset Council came into existence there had been a 
great deal of work to harmonise policies and ways of working.  For some areas of 
policy harmonisation the Government had given the Council 2 years to bring together 
predecessor council policies in order to have a single Dorset area wide policy.   
There were 9 such policy areas.  In six areas Dorset wide policies had already been 
adopted, or would be by April 2021.  There were three areas where officers were not 
certain they would be able to adopt in time.  This was as a result of the impact of 
COVID 19, including not being able to go out and consult with members of the public.  
The Council had written to the Government regarding this and had received a reply 
back from the Minister giving confidence that an extension of 12 months could be 
secured.  

The Council was also required to adopt a Dorset wide Local Plan within 5 years.  

84.  Policy Harmonisation

Included with the previous item.

85.  Constitutional Changes

The Monitoring Officer advised members of the changes in the Constitution that had 
been made in relation to the Standing Orders to enable virtual meetings to go ahead.  
Before the changes had been made he confirmed that he had consulted with Group 
Leaders.

Following a question from the Chairman about when face to face meetings might 
take place again, the Monitoring Officer advised that legislation was in place until 
May 2021 to allow virtual meetings to continue.  Even if the Government agreed that 
councils could return to face to face meetings the Monitoring Officer suggested that 
members might wish some committees to continue to meet virtually. It was not 
necessarily a one size fits all scenario. With the lockdown being relaxed the 
Monitoring Officer undertook to look into the area of face to face meetings more 
closely.

The Deputy Leader of the Council highlighted the work of the Reset and Recovery 
EAP which included looking to retain some good things that had come out of the 
pandemic.  They were looking at whether to retain some virtual meetings and looking 
at some hybrid solutions.  He was keen for the September full council meeting to be 
a hybrid meeting but this was still work in progress.

The Leader of the Council endorsed the comments made and wanted to ensure the 
Council did not lose all the learning that had been gained.  He planned to undertake 

Page 10



7

some lobbying through the LGA to have a mix of both styles of meetings but 
accepted there was a balance to be struck. He encouraged members to get involved 
with how the Council took this forward as there were lots more flexibilities that could 
be gained through lobbying.

In response to a question about advice being given to Town and Parish councils, the 
Monitoring Officer advised that no particular advice was being given apart from some 
notes on best practice. The same position applied to Town and Parish councils as it 
did to Dorset Council, some might wish to retain some virtual meetings after May 
2021 but this relied on the Government giving councils the flexibility to allow this.

86.  Forward Plan

The Committee’s Forward Plan was reviewed and the following points noted:-

 September – additional SWAP reports
 November – the Chairman asked members to consider a deep dive 

exercise for this meeting. 
 The Executive Director for Corporate Development made reference to the 

accounts being required traditionally to sign off by 31 July.  The statutory 
deadline in light of the pandemic was now 30 November. He planned to sign 
off the draft accounts next week in order for them to be formally audited.  He 
asked the Chairman to consider moving the review of accounts from August 
to the November meeting, which was agreed.

Decision
That the Statement of Accounts and Annual Audit letters be moved to the November 
meeting.

87.  Urgent items

There were no urgent items of business.

However, Cllr Gray asked to raise a question, which the Chairman allowed.

Cllr Gray asked if and where the Council reviewed decisions made 
geographically. He was referring specifically to decisions made during the 
lockdown period in respect of Weymouth, Portland and Chickerell. He was 
concerned how the decisions were made rather than the actual decision.

The Monitoring Officer advised that in principle an overview and scrutiny could 
look at issues geographically or on a thematic basis.  If the concerns were 
Covid related the best place to raise them would be at the Resources Scrutiny 
committee, as they had been acting as the scrutiny committee for COVID 
decisions.  He asked members to email him with any specific questions which 
could then be raised with the Resources Chairman to see if there was scope 
for the business to be included at the Committee’s next meeting.  The Vice-
Chairman added that he was keen to understand about local member 
consultation and whether special powers had overridden this.

The Chairman asked that if any member had a specific issue local to their 
area to email the Monitoring Officer.

Page 11



8

Duration of meeting: 10.00  - 11.47 am

Chairman

Page 12



Audit and Governance Committee
10 August 2020
Approach to value for money

For Decision
Portfolio Holder:  Cllr P Wharf, Corporate Development and Change

Local Councillor(s):  All  

Executive Director:  Aidan Dunn, Executive Director, Corporate 
Development

 
Report Author: Bridget Downton
Title: Head of Business Insight and Corporate Communications 
Tel: 01929 557268
Email: bridget.downton@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

Report Status:  Public

Recommendation:
Audit and Governance Committee recommends that Cabinet develop a value for 
money framework and timeline setting out how it will implement value for money 
benchmarking of all services to feed into a prioritisation exercise for conducting 
fundamental value for money reviews of the all the council’s services. 
Reason for Recommendation:     
To ensure that the council is delivering value for money in all its services.
1. Executive Summary Dorset Council has not yet developed a systematic 

approach to ensuring that its services are delivering value for money 
(VfM). Before local government review, a range of arrangements were in 
place across the predecessor councils. Work is now needed to implement 
an effective and systematic review of the value for money across all of the 
council’s services. Work has been delayed on progressing this as a result 
of the current pandemic but the current financial challenges mean that this 
work now needs to be prioritised. 

2. Financial Implications: With scarce resources, it is essential that the 
council ensures that it secures best value for all of its expenditure and that 
it reports VfM performance systematically and accurately.  

  

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



3. Climate implications: no specific implications from this report although 
value for money reviews will need to take account of climate impacts.

4. Other Implications: None in relation to this report

5. Risk Assessment

Having considered the risks associated with this decision, the level of risk has 
been identified as:
Current Risk: Medium
Residual Risk: Medium

6. Equalities Impact Assessment: The fundamental service reviews will 
need to include equalities impact assessments where changes to services 
are proposed as a result of the reviews.

7. Appendices: None

8. Background Papers: None

9. Further information  
What is value for money?

9.1 Value for money is the relationship between economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness. These are defined as:

 Economy – : minimising the cost of resources used or required 
(inputs) – spending less

 Efficiency: the relationship between the output from goods or services 
and the resources to produce them – spending well 

 Effectiveness: the relationship between the intended and actual 
results of public spending (outcomes) – spending wisely.

9.2 In addition to the traditional three “E”s, a fourth “E” is applied in some 
places:

 Equity: the extent to which services are available to and reach all 
people that they are intended to – spending fairly. Some people may 
receive differing levels of service for reasons other than differences in 
their levels of need.

9.3 Dorset Council does not yet have a single, corporate approach to VfM. A 
range of approaches existed in the predecessor councils and some 
activity has been carried forward into Dorset Council. Previous internal 
and external reviews will provide useful insight into the strengths and 
weaknesses of these approaches to enable Dorset Council to develop a 

Page 14



comprehensive approach to VfM. In an ideal world, more work would have 
been done on this ahead of local government reorganisation but there was 
not time for this – councillors will remember that the focus was on safe 
and legal for day one. Diversion of resources into responding to the 
coronavirus pandemic has also impacted on progress with this work. 
Ironically, the financial impacts of the pandemic mean that this work takes 
on a renewed importance. 

9.4 A range of activity contributes to ensuring that Dorset Council delivers 
value for money but more needs to be done to demonstrate this more 
clearly. 

9.5 Significant savings were delivered as part of local government 
reorganisation. Value for money considerations are implicit in a range of 
routine council activity such as budget setting, budget monitoring and 
contract management. In the autumn, the council will be considering a 
new procurement strategy which will be a key component of securing 
value for money. 
Proposed approach

9.6 The council in the process of developing and implementing a robust 
approach to performance monitoring and management. This work has 
been delayed because of resources being diverted into dealing with the 
coronavirus pandemic but work has recently restarted including the recent 
agreement of the council’s performance management framework. Regular 
performance reporting is now underway. The Portfolio Holder for 
Corporate Development and Change will be chairing a monthly meeting of 
portfolio holders and executive directors which will examine service 
performance alongside budget performance. The next logical step will be 
to review these alongside the value for money of the council’s services. 
The council does not currently have all the information needed to do this.

9.7 The proposal is to develop a value for money framework and timeline 
setting out how to implement value for money benchmarking of all 
services to feed into a prioritisation exercise for conducting fundamental 
value for money reviews of the all the council’s services. The fundamental 
service reviews will need to include activity around: 

 Comparing ourselves to the best in terms of both performance, cost 
and value for money.

 Challenging whether Dorset Council is best placed to provide the 
service and also the best way to provide the service including different 
ways of working; different service delivery options; and exploring 
commercial market options. This could also include reviewing any 
currently outsourced services.

 Consulting our customers (be they internal or external) to find out what 
they want from the service.

Page 15



9.8 A key piece of work will be a systematic benchmarking exercise across all 
of the council’s services to identify strong and weak areas of performance 
and cost. This will enable a prioritisation exercise to deliver a timeline for 
fundamental service review.

9.9 The approach to fundamental service review will be overseen by the 
Portfolio Holder for Corporate Development and the council’s Corporate 
Leadership Team. It will be worked up by officers from finance; business 
intelligence & performance; and digital & change.

9.10 As part of local government reorganisation, the Dorset Council 
restructured its corporate support services. This resulted in business 
partners being set up to support the frontline business teams. Business 
partners are in place to provide support to frontline services in relation to 
the following corporate functions:

 Business Intelligence and Performance
 Communications
 Digital and Change
 Finance
 HR
 Procurement

9.11 The business partner role is a new one. They are there to:

 influence strategy and business outcomes, 
 collaborate with managers to further policy goals, 
 offer expert analysis and interpretation, 
 present options to resolve problems and exploit opportunities, 
 develop understand and inform decision making: 

9.12 The business partners will be key to providing data, information, support 
and challenge through the fundamental service review process. 

Footnote:
Issues relating to financial, legal, environmental, economic and equalities 
implications have been considered and any information relevant to the decision is 
included within the report.

Page 16



Audit and Governance Committee Forward Plan

Date of 
Meeting

Item Purpose / Key lines of Enquiry Lead councillor / officer

10 August 2020
Value for money – policies and 
Procedures

Request from Minute 72 – 20 
May 2020

Portfolio Holder – Finance, Commercial 
& Assets

28 September 2020
Financial Report Quarter 1 2020/21 To review and scrutinise the Quarter 

1 finance report as presented to 
Cabinet

Portfolio Holder – Finance, Commercial 
& Assets

Officer contact - Executive Director – 
Corporate Development & S151

Treasury Management Annual 
Report

To receive a Treasury Management 
update

Portfolio Holder – Finance, Commercial 
& Assets

Officer contact - Executive Director – 
Corporate Development & S151

Internal Audit 2020/21 Plan Progress 
Report

To receive the report and note the 
internal audit progress for 2020/21

Portfolio Holder – Leader of the Council

Officer contact – Corporate Director – 
Legal & Democratic Services & 
Monitoring Officer and Executive 
Director – Corporate Dev & S151

Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 – 
updated for second half of the year

To receive the Internal Audit Plan 
updated for the second half of 
2020/21

Portfolio Holder – Leader of the Council

Officer contact – Corporate Director – 
Legal & Democratic Services & 
Monitoring Officer and Executive 
Director – Corporate Development & 
S151

Internal Audit Annual Report To receive the internal Audit 
Annual Report

Portfolio Holder – Leader of the Council

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 7



Fraud and Whistlowing Annual 
Report

Portfolio Holder – Leader of the Council
Officer contact – Service Manager for 
Assurance

Risk Management Update To review and challenge the 
council’s corporate risk register 
including the effectiveness of 
the controls identified to bring 
down the level of risk to an 
acceptable level

Portfolio Holder – Leader of the Council 
Officer contact – Service Manager for 
Assurance

Dorset Council’s Performance 
Framework

To receive an updated draft 
following members’ comments on 
10 July 2020.

Portfolio Holder – Deputy Leader of the 
Council
Officer contact – Head of Business 
Insight and Corporate Communications

Constitutional Changes (if required) To report to the committee on any 
changes made to the Constitution 
under powers delegated to the 
Monitoring Officer, to seek the views 
of the committee on any proposed 
changes requiring full Council 
approval and to receive an update 
on the 12 month review of the 
Constitution.

Portfolio Holder - Leader of the Council

Lead Officer - Corporate Director -Legal 
& Democratic Services
Monitoring Officer

16 November 2020
Dorset Council Statement of 
Accounts

To receive the Statement of 
Accounts & External Audit report 
for Dorset Council

Portfolio Holder – Finance, Commercial 
& Assets

P
age 18



Annual Audit Letters To consider the Deloitte external 
auditor annual audit letters in relation 
to the 2019-20 accounts for the legacy 
sovereign authorities of Dorset 
Council.

18 January 2021
Financial Report Quarter 2 2020/21 To review and scrutinise the Quarter 

2 finance report as presented to 
Cabinet

Portfolio Holder – Finance, Commercial 
& Assets

Officer contact - Executive Director – 
Corporate Development & S151

Internal Audit 2020/21 Plan Progress 
Report

To receive the report and note the 
internal audit progress for 2020/21

Portfolio Holder – Leader of the Council

Officer contact – Corporate Director – 
Legal & Democratic Services & 
Monitoring Officer and Executive 
Director – Corporate Development & 
S151

Risk Management Update To review and challenge the 
council’s corporate risk register 
including the effectiveness of the 
controls identified to bring down the 
level of risk to an acceptable level

Portfolio Holder – Leader of the Council

Officer contact – Service Manager for 
Assurance

Constitutional Changes (if required) To report to the committee on any 
changes made to the Constitution 
under powers delegated to the 
Monitoring Officer, to seek the views 
of the committee on any proposed 
changes requiring full Council 
approval and to receive an update 
on the 12 month review of the 
Constitution.

Portfolio Holder - Leader of the Council

Lead Officer - Corporate Director -Legal 
& Democratic Services
Monitoring Officer

22 February 2021

P
age 19



Financial Report Quarter 3 2020/21 
(Theresa Leavy & Vivienne 
Broadhurst to attend)

To review and scrutinise the Quarter 
3 finance report as presented to 
Cabinet

Portfolio Holder – Finance, Commercial 
& Assets

Officer contact - Executive Director – 
Corporate Development & S151

Internal Audit 2020/21 Plan Progress 
Report

To enable the committee to consider 
progress against the Internal Audit 
Plan for the second year half. This 
will include reporting of and a focus 
upon the highest priority actions 
identified through the Plan

Portfolio Holder – Leader of the Council

Officer contact – Corporate Director – 
Legal & Democratic Services & 
Monitoring Officer and Executive 
Director – Corporate Development & 
S151

Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 & 
Internal Audit Charter

To approve the proposed internal 
audit plan for 2021/22. The plan 
brought to the committee for 
approval will have been discussed 
with both the Leader and SLT

Portfolio Holder – Leader of the Council

Officer contact - Corporate Director – 
Legal & Democratic Services & 
Monitoring Officer

Risk Management Update To review and challenge the 
council’s corporate risk register 
including the effectiveness of the 
controls identified to bring down the

Portfolio Holder – Leader of the Council

Officer contact – Service Manager for 
Assurance

P
age 20



level of risk to an acceptable level
Annual Audit Update (External Audit) To receive an update from the 

council’s External Auditor
External Audit

Annual Governance Statement To review and challenge the content 
of the statutory Annual Governance 
Statement ahead of its signing by the 
Leader of Council and Chief 
Executive

Portfolio Holder – Leader of the Council

Officer contact - Corporate Director – 
Legal & Democratic Services & 
Monitoring Officer

Constitutional Changes (if required) To report to the committee on any 
changes made to the Constitution 
under powers delegated to the 
Monitoring Officer, to seek the views 
of the committee on any proposed 
changes requiring full Council 
approval and to receive an update 
on the 12 month review of the 
Constitution.

Portfolio Holder - Leader of the Council

Lead Officer - Corporate Director -Legal 
& Democratic Service
Monitoring Officer

Dorset Council Plan – Quarterly 
Report Q3

To review and monitor the 
Quarterly Report 

Portfolio Holder – Corporate 
Development & Change

Officer contact – Head of 
Business Intelligence and 
Corporate Communications 

19 April 2021
Dorset Council Plan – Quarterly 
Report Q4

To review and monitor the 
Quarterly Report 

Portfolio Holder – Corporate 
Development & Change

Officer contact – Head of 
Business Intelligence and 
Corporate Communications 

P
age 21



Other items raised by Audit and Governance Committee requiring further consideration

Issue Notes Date raised
Workforce stress / mental health issues The committee have raised this as a 

potential area of work but note that it is 
linked to current transformation work

At committee on 7 November 2019

How Dorset Council holds and shares 
information

It is understood that some work is being 
undertaken in this area.

A councillor workshop on the Dorset

At committee on 7 November 2019

P
age 22



Council transformation programmes is 
being held on 10 January 2020. The 
suggestion is that councillors attend this 
session and following this, the committee 
give further consideration to whether any 
further work is required in this area

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Value for Money - Policies and Procedures
	7 Forward Plan

